
 
page 1 of 4 

  
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SAFETY MINUTES  
January 2, 2007 

 
 
 
 
The Board of Public Works and Safety of the City of West Lafayette, Indiana met in regular 
session in the Board of Works Room at City Hall on January 2, 2007, at 11:00 a.m.  Present 
were Janet L. Broyles, Gilbert T. Satterly, and Mayor Mills, who presided.  
 
Information for Board:  Knox Box Security in the “Island” Area – Police 
Deputy Police Chief Walker said the only business is more information than anything else.  
Brian Lancaster from the Fire Department called and received a call from the Purdue Fire 
Department.  They have an issue about four of the locations in the “Island” area with the Knox 
boxes, and wanted to know if we were going to furnish them a key.  I told him that we would 
not, that they would have to have the four locations re-keyed with whatever Knox key they 
use for Purdue.  Just normal security for the rest of the City. 
 
Mayor Mills said okay. 
 
Deputy Police Chief Walker said that’s the only business I have. 
 
Bid Acceptance:  Westland LLC – 2007 City Fuel – Street 
Public Works Director Downey said the Board received fuel bids for the entire City two weeks 
ago, I believe.  There was only one bid from Westland Co-Op, and I recommend the Board 
accept that.  We have had no problems with their delivery or fuel or the price lines.  We will 
stay with just regular gasoline and regular diesel fuel, and if things kind of level out, as far as 
the new hybrid fuels, the corn fuels, we’ll look at that a little closer and see if we can’t start 
using that to clean up the emissions and stuff.  But those prices are in there.  They will 
change with each tank wagon delivery price, so we’ll keep an eye on it and see if we can use 
it. 
 
Ms. Broyles said I move that we approve the 2007 fuel bid recommendations of Westland Co-
Op LLC.  Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Information for Board: Christmas Tree Disposal – Sanitation 
Public Works Director Downey said I’d like to remind the Board that we have no drop-off 
areas for Christmas trees.  We pick those up at the curb on Mondays and Fridays, depending 
on the brush pickup schedule.  We continue that brush pickup schedule throughout the year, 
so we pick up the Christmas trees right along with the brush to be recycled and composted. 
 
Mr. Satterly said and Christmas trees without ornaments. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said without ornaments.  Well, we still get a few of them.   
 
Information for Board: Status of Western Interceptor Construction – WWTU 
Public Works Director Downey said and I do have an update on the Western Interceptor, if 
you care to hear about that later on.  I won’t take up the time now.  But the first bill for that, 
over $500,000, will probably go through Judy’s [Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes’] office next week.  
That’s all I have. 
 
Mr. Satterly said the pipe’s in the ground? 
 

gail
Text Box
Approved at the January 9, 2007, Board of Works meeting.



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, JANUARY 2, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 

 
page 2 of 4 

Public Works Director Downey said the pipe in the ground. 
 
Information for Board:  Redevelopment Commission Meeting – Development 
CDBG and Development Manager Martin said no business, just an announcement that the 
Redevelopment Commission will meet at 4:00 
 
Agreement:  City of Lafayette – Health Insurance Consortium – Mayor 
Mayor Mills said I do have business today.  I’m bringing the Lafayette-West Lafayette 
Consortium Agreement for health insurance that we are doing with the City of Lafayette.  You 
got that email, both of you, so we have the final agreement to sign today.  I’ll make a motion 
that we approve the agreement with the City of Lafayette for health insurance consortium.  
Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said Madam Mayor, is the consortium a public body? 
 
Mayor Mills said it is not.  We are not going to have—it’s not going to be public meetings.  It’s 
a personnel body, so we will meet regularly to kind of follow the—I guess to tweak anything 
that we feel needs to be happening with the consortium, to look at our group of employees as 
a whole, to decide if we need to add things to our plans or change our health plans in any 
way.  To try to, certainly, work on wellness programs as a whole, so that we can have better 
claim history for both cities, but, no, I mean, it will be an internal personnel issue that will be 
handled by the cities.   
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said to follow up with my second question that I did relay last week 
but I didn’t hear from anyone. 
 
Mayor Mills said I responded to you on those. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said no, I haven’t seen them. 
 
Mayor Mills said I responded to you this morning on both of those questions. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I haven’t received them, so— 
 
Mayor Mills said it was early in the morning. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said why is the claims history of the City going to be not reported to 
any agent of the City?  Why would that—or how does that work for the accountability that 
we’re going to have?  The UHC contract is worth over $1.3 million a year for West Lafayette 
alone.   
 
Mayor Mills said we will get claim history, but we will get claim history as a consortium, which 
is what happens when groups form consortium.  They have found that if you’re doing 
consortium and everybody gets individual claim history, then consortium falls apart.  And the 
whole purpose is to use our enlarged group of employees to be able to purchase health care 
at a lower cost, to be able to offer our employees better benefits, better health insurance, 
because we are now a large group of employees.  And if you start providing individual 



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, JANUARY 2, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 

 
page 3 of 4 

feedback to those groups, then the consortium falls apart.  There’s no reason to stay together 
if you’re constantly going to be battling against each other by who has a better claim history.  
So we made an agreement that, for three years, we will work as a unit for health insurance, 
and we will work as a unit to, again, offer wellness programs, to improve our claim histories.  
We will know the claim history but it will not be West Lafayette and Lafayette.  School 
corporations who form consortiums don’t get feedback as an individual school corporation.  
They get feedback as consortium of school corporations, and that’s how they manage their 
health care and that’s how they work to have better claim history for their employees.  That 
seems to be, listening to the people that have done this in other places, the only way you 
have a functional consortium, is if you work as a whole.  And, at the end of three years, if we 
find that it hasn’t been a good thing for us, we have agreed that we’ll reevaluate.  
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said how would we not—?  I just want to express my concern that 
the commitment to stay for three years is not necessarily a requirement that we be blind to 
our claims experience.  I don’t see the two as incompatible, and I have concern. 
 
Mayor Mills said well, I appreciate that, but after a lot of discussion among the group, we 
decided that, on the recommendation of the people who have set these up for other entities, 
that if you look at individual claim history, you basically shoot yourselves in the foot with the 
viability of your consortium.  So, if we’re really going to give this a go, then we have to, I think, 
be committed to staying with it as a whole entity for a certain period of time and really working 
to better our claim history as a large group of employees, or it’s not worth our investment of 
time and energy to do it. 
 
Mr. Satterly said we’ll know from year to year as to what the premiums are, right? 
 
Mayor Mills said sure. 
 
Mr. Satterly said so we’ll know whether the premiums are going up or down. 
 
Mayor Mills said yes, exactly.  And we’ll be managing it, again, as a whole group of 
employees, a larger group of employees.  We feel it’s going to be beneficial to the City.  
Okay, anything else?  I’ll move— 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Administrative Assistant Thayer-Copeland said I haven’t recorded the vote. 
 
Mayor Mills said but we have not voted?  Okay. 
 
The vote was AYE. 
 
Claims 
Mayor Mills moved to approve the claims as submitted in two dockets in the following 
amounts: 

Accounts Payable $1,796,888.26
Payroll $     93,204.75

Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, JANUARY 2, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 

 
page 4 of 4 

Minutes 
Mr. Satterly said I move approval of the minutes of the Board of Public Works and Safety 
meeting of December 27, 2006, as distributed.  Motion was seconded by Ms. Broyles, and 
the vote was AYE. 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further business at this time, Ms. Broyles moved for adjournment.  Motion 
was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
Jan H. Mills, Mayor                    Judith C. Rhodes, Clerk-Treasurer 
Presiding Officer                                     Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 

gail
Text Box




